
Budget Hearing #46 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 17, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 1 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Davis called the Budget Hearing Session to order at 11:00 a.m.  
 
Each hearing has a corresponding Budget Summary and Excel spreadsheet that are included in 
the minutes. 
 
Budget Hearing, Soil & Water, 11:00 a.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; Fairfield County 
Soil and Water District Manager/Engineering Technician, Nikki Drake; Senior Urban Specialist, 
Chad Lucht; and Fiscal Coordinator, Christina Holt. 
 
Commissioner Fix spoke about the Engineer’s Office performing work performed by Fairfield 
County Soil and Water. 
 
Ms. Drake stated that an additional Urban Specialist was hired in 2022 to assist Chad Lucht and 
that the department is still struggling to keep up with the Urban Program.   
 
Mr. Lucht spoke about their agreement for services with Violet Township, an MS4 community.  
 
Commissioner Fix asked how much time is used on development activities. 
 
Mr. Lucht stated that he works more with post construction water control and added the 
importance of ensuring projects are complying with permits. Mr. Lucht also added that he does a 
different type of inspection than performed by the Engineers’ Office. 
 
Ms. Drake added that the assistance of additional personnel is needed as growth continues to 
come to Fairfield County. 
 
Commissioner Fix asked if shifting some of Soil and Water’s responsibilities to the Engineer’s 
Office would change the need for an additional person. He also asked if there were additional 
budget requests outside of the position and if those requests were ongoing. 
 
Ms. Drake replied there were additional requests and that they would all be ongoing unless the 
growth stopped. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated that the Board is looking at requests outside of budget parameters. 
 
Commissioner Fix stated that Fairfield County gives the 9th largest amount to the county’s Soil 
and Water in the State and yet is the 20th largest county. 
 
Ms. Drake stated that their grant matches are based on what they receive. 
 
The Commissioners requested a follow up hearing. 
 
Budget Hearing, Treasurer’s Office, 11:15 a.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; Treasurer, Jim 
Bahnsen; Chief Deputy Treasurer, Michael Kaper; and Fiscal Specialist, Jennifer Effinger. 



Budget Hearing #46 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 17, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 2 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Treasurer Bahnsen stated the big change in the 2024 proposed budget is the 5.7% increase in 
salary. He added that the other significant increase was in health insurance and a few small 
increases such as office furniture and equipment. 
 
Budget Hearing, OSU Extension, 11:45 a.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and Shannon 
Carter; and Leslie Cooksey from the OSU Extension Office. 
 
Ms. Carter thanked the Board of Commissioners for their support of the OSU Extension office 
programs. 
 
Commissioner Fix thanked the OSU Extension group for all their programming. 
 
Ms. Carter spoke about the Agriculture and Natural Resources Educator, Carrie Brown; and 
Haley Black, the 4-H Program Assistant. She added that both positions started within the last 
year. Ms. Carter stated that the addition of the budget request was due to carry-over that was 
being used to fund programming and added that benefits and salaries are set by the University.  
 
Commissioner Fix spoke about the great youth programming and its impact. 
 
The Commissioners requested a follow up hearing. 
 
Budget Hearing, Regional Planning, 1:00 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and Regional 
Planning Interim Director, Holly Mattei. 
 
Ms. Mattei stated that Regional Planning has a healthy carry-over and does not require additional 
funding due to the ability to use that carry-over in 2024. She also spoke about RPC positions and 
completing a model zoning code for county townships. 
 
Commissioner Fix spoke about the desire of the county to be a county that developers feel 
favorable towards. 
 
The Commissioners spoke about adjusting the budget by $25,000 to allow the RPC to have 
appropriate carry-over for 2025. 
 
Budget Hearing, Recorder’s Office, 1:15 p.m 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and Recorder Lisa 
McKenzie 
 
Recorder McKenzie stated the only item in her budget which is out of parameters is the purchase 
of new equipment, which would cost approximately $5,000.  



Budget Hearing #46 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 17, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 3 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Davis asked about the timeline for the new equipment. 
 
Recorder McKenzie stated she hoped the first of the year. 
 
Budget Hearing, Human Resources, 1:45 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; and Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley. 
 
Mr. Porter started at 1:20 p.m. and spoke about increases in contract services and additional 
money for the annual employee recognition event.  
 
Commissioner Davis asked why HR salaries are down. 
 
Mr. Porter stated that salaries are down because some positions are being funded partially by the 
health insurance fund based on functions. 
 
Commissioner Fix thanked Mr. Porter for his work in HR and for the work he has done on the 
insurance programs. 
 
Budget Hearing, Dog Shelter, 1:30 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and Dog Warden, 
Leighann Adams. 
 
Dog Warden Adams started at 1:25 p.m. and stated the Dog Shelter has quite a bit of carryover 
from previous years. She added they would like to use some of those funds to repurpose an 
unused building and convert it to additional storage.  
 
Deputy Administrator Porter added that the Dog Shelter has also applied for a grant to replace 
the floors due to safety measures. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if it can be expected that the Dog Shelter will eventually need to 
return to needing funding from the General Fund. 
 
Deputy Administrator Porter stated that it is the Dog Shelter’s intention to never return to 
needing funding from the General Fund.  
 
Dog Warden Adams stated there has been an uptick in dogs at the shelter and lower adoption 
rates, which she believes is indicative of the economy.  
 
Administrator Cordle explained that the Dog Shelter is very active on social media and in 
community engagement to establish a presence around the county.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Budget Hearing #46 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 17, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 4 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget Hearing, Utilities, 2:15 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; Utilities Director, 
Tony Vogel; and Utilities Deputy Director of Finance, Curtis Witham. 
Commissioner Fix started the Hearing at 1:42 and stated that the Utilities Department is a self-
contained entity. 
 
Mr. Vogel spoke about the expected carry-over from 2023 to 2024. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked about customer increases and water sources. 
 
Mr. Vogel replied that the increase would be 3% and added that the Diley wellfield would be 
used and further added that his office is looking at water sources near Liberty Township. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked about infrastructure investments and if there was a need for rate 
increases. 
 
Mr. Vogel spoke about possible rate caps or adjustments for seniors. He also spoke about the 
Greenfield Sewer District and the rate increases that have been built in by the City of Lancaster. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked about combining Greenfield with the county fund. 
 
Mr. Vogel replied that the funds cannot be combined until the lift station has been built because 
Greenfield’s sewage goes to the City of Lancaster. 
 
Budget Hearing, Coroner’s Office, 2:00 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; Coroner’s 
Administrator, Luann Davidson; and Coroner, Dr. Vogel. 
 
Dr. Varney stated that his office has an increase in salaries due to the Administrator’s impending 
retirement and the training of a part-time assistant, who will become full-time in the fourth 
quarter of 2024. 
 
Ms. Davidson stated that contract services have increased significantly and added that an 
increase in the autopsy and toxicology funds would give the Coroner’s Office more room when 
assessing the cost of each autopsy.  
 
Commissioner Fix asked if there is ever a circumstance where an autopsy is appropriate, but 
funding limits their options.  
 
Dr. Varney explained that this is never an option for his office because he will always be 
committed to the families of the dead, and to helping community law enforcement find causes of 
death. He explained that there are instances where he will suggest a family not order an autopsy 
based off his office’s guidelines.  
 
Commissioner Davis asked if the Coroner’s Office would be back to one full-time employee by 
the first quarter of 2025. 



Budget Hearing #46 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 17, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 5 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Varney stated that they would be interested in hiring a new part-time administrator in 
addition to the full-time person. 
 
The Commissioners requested a follow up hearing. 
 
Budget Hearing, Domestic Relations Court, 2:15 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; Judge Laura Smith; 
and Court Administrator, Lori Lovas. 
 
Judge Laura Smith spoke about the change of insurance elections causing the necessity for the 
budget increase. The Judge also thanked the Commissioners for their support of the Visitation 
Center. 
 
Commissioner Davis spoke about the difference between a judiciary budget and a departmental 
budget. 
 
 Adjournment 
 
With no further business, on the motion of Jeff Fix and the second of Steve Davis, the Board of 
Commissioners voted to adjourn at 2:47 p.m. 
 
Roll call vote of the motion resulted as follows: 
Voting aye thereon: Jeff Fix, Steve Davis, and Dave Levacy 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
   
        
Motion by: Jeff Fix     Seconded by: Dave Levacy 
that the October 17, 2023, Budget Hearing minutes were approved by the following vote: 
 
YEAS: Jeff Fix, Dave Levacy, and Steve Davis    NAYS: None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
 
*Approved on October 24, 2023 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 Steven Davis     Dave Levacy                   Jeff Fix    
Commissioner    Commissioner    Commissioner  
 
 
____________________________ 
Rochelle Menningen, Clerk 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
          



10/17/2023 007



10/17/2023 008



10/17/2023 009



10/17/2023 010



10/17/2023 011



10/17/2023 012



10/17/2023 013



10/17/2023 014



10/17/2023 015



10/17/2023 016



10/17/2023 017



10/17/2023 018



10/17/2023 019



10/17/2023 020



10/17/2023 021



10/17/2023 022



10/17/2023 023



10/17/2023 024



10/17/2023 025



10/17/2023 026



10/17/2023 027



10/17/2023 028



10/17/2023 029



10/17/2023 030



10/17/2023 031



10/17/2023 032



10/17/2023 033



10/17/2023 034



10/17/2023 035



10/17/2023 036



10/17/2023 037



10/17/2023 038



10/17/2023 039



10/17/2023 040



10/17/2023 041



10/17/2023 042



10/17/2023 043



10/17/2023 044



10/17/2023 045



10/17/2023 046



10/17/2023 047



10/17/2023 048



10/17/2023 049



10/17/2023 050



10/17/2023 051



10/17/2023 052



10/17/2023 053



10/17/2023 054



10/17/2023 055



10/17/2023 056



10/17/2023 057



10/17/2023 058



10/17/2023 059



10/17/2023 060



10/17/2023 061



10/17/2023 062



10/17/2023 063



10/17/2023 064




